_-_7

CHO

A I R P O R T

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority Meeting
Tuesday, May 14, 2019, at 10:00 a.m.
Airport Terminal — Lower Level Conference Room

AGENDA
Call to Order:

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — April 10, 2019 meeting
2. Financial Statements — March 31, 2019 (Unaudited)
3. Airport Statistics: February 2019 and March 2019

Matters from the Public: All person desiring to make presentations as part of the MATTERS FROM THE
PUBLIC section of the Agenda are requested to advise the administrative office prior to commencement of
the meeting to assist the Chairman in conducting the meeting in an efficient and productive manner;
allowing for maximum input. Speakers are encouraged to limit remarks to five minutes. Additional time
may be granted solely at the discretion of the Chairman unless such presentation is extended by reason of
the Authority’s request for additional information:

Awards & Recognition:

Action Items:
1. FY-2020 Operating Budget and 6-Year Airport Capital Improvement Plan
2. Resolution No. 2019-4 “Executive Director Authorization to Accept a Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) Grant for the Construction of the Air Carrier Ramp Expansion and the
Construction of the Entry Pavilion Projects.”

Informational Items:
1. Executive Director’s Update

a. Personnel Update

b. CHO Open House

c. PFC Application Update
d. Construction Update

1. Parking Improvements Design
ii. Runway/Taxiway Rehab Construction
iii. Air Carrier Ramp Expansion Design
iv. Entry Pavilion Design
v. Terminal Energy Modification
vi. MALSR Update
vii. Terminal Pre-screening work
viil. Request for Proposals (RF Ps)
e. Marketing & Air Service Update
f.  Joint Board/Commission Fall Retreat

Next Scheduled Meeting: July 9, 2019 8:30 a.m. — Location to be determined

Adjourn:



——g

CHO

A I R P O R T

Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Board Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, April 10, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. at the City of Charlottesville’s Basement Conference Room

MINUTES

Members Present: Donald Long, Mike Murphy, Jeff Richardson

Members Absent: none
Staff Present: Melinda Crawford: Executive Director; Penny Shifflett: Director of Finance and Administration;

Jessica Conley: Administrative Assistant
Others Present: Lisa Robertson: Chief Deputy City Attorney; Alison Wravel: Daily Progress

Call to Order at 9:07 a.m. by Donald Long.

Consent Agenda:
1. Minutes — March 12, 2019: Mr. Murphy motioned to approve the Minutes. Mr. Richardson seconded the

motion, and it was unanimously approved.
Matters from the Public: None

Action Items:

1. Revision of Authority’s Purchasing Regulations- Item Discussed. Mr. Murphy made a motion to amend the
recommendation as prepared to accept the changes to the single quotation limit for purchase of goods in the
$1-$10,000.00 range. The 3 solicitations standard for purchase of goods would be $10,000-$30,000.00 instead
of $10,000.00-$60,000.00 as proposed and 4 written solicitations would be required for the purchase of goods
in the $30,000.00-$100,000.00 range. For non-professional services the threshold for single quotations will
be $1-$30,000.00, and there will be no tier for 3 solicitations which was at the level of $15,000.00-
$30,000.00. The 4 written solicitations level will remain as it is today which is $30,000.00-$100,000.00.
Language will also be added to the attached resolution that will require the Board to review amendment #1 of
the Purchasing Regulations prior to it being implemented. Mr. Richardson seconded the motion, and it was

unanimously approved.

2. Design-Build Construction Method for Parking Deck Project-Item Discussed. Mr. Long motioned to approve
the Design-Build Method for Parking Deck development, and the motion was seconded by Mr. Richardson.

The motion was unanimously approved.

3. Resolution Making Certain Declarations and Providing Certain Approvals in Connection with a Proposed
Bond Issue- Mr. Richardson motioned to approve the Resolution Making Certain Declarations and Providing
Certain “Approvals in Connection with a Proposed Bond Issue”, and the motion was seconded by Mr. Long.
The motion was unanimously approved.

Discussion Item:

1. Executive Director’s Annual Evaluation Process- Mr. Long discussed possible changes to the evaluation
process for the executive director’s evaluation beginning with FY20’s evaluation process.



Closed Session:

In accordance with VA Code 2.2-3712 the Airport Authority convened in closed session for discussion and
consideration of the performance and salary of the Executive Director, pursuant to VA Code 2.2-3711 (A) (1).
Mr. Murphy made the motion. Mr. Richardson seconded the motion, and it was unanimously approved.

Board entered closed session at 9:39 a.m.
Certification of Closed Meeting:

A 10:20 a.m. Mr. Murphy made the following motion:

I'move that this Board certify by a recorded vote that to the best of each Board member’s knowledge only public
business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements of the Virginia Freedom of Information
Act and identified in the Motion convening the closes session were heard, discussed or considered in the closed
session.

Mr. Richardson seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously approved.

Mr. Long reported the Executive Director’s base salary will be increased 3% for FY20 and the contribution
toward retirement will increase to 5% based on salary per year. Other benefits will remain the same, and the new
salary will have an effective date of 07/01/19.

Mr. Long motioned the salary increase for the executive director and to amend the executive director’s contract to
change the deferred compensation to 5% annually. Mr. Richardson seconded the motion. The motion was

unanimously approved.

Adjourn: 10:25 a.m. Mr. Long motioned the closing of the meeting, Mr. Murphy seconded, and it was
unanimously approved

Next Scheduled Meeting: Tuesday, May 14, 2019, 10:00 a.m. at the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport
conference room



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Financial Statements (unaudited)
As of March 31, 2019



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Profit & Loss Notes
As of March 31, 2019

$15K and 10% change

Revenues:

A. Advertising:--This is the airport’s first full year with advertising revenue. The actual

B.

C.

revenues have come in higher than projected.

Food/Gift Concessions:--Tailwind activity continues to exceed expectations with their
growth in sales which is also tied to the increase in passenger activity.

State Entitlement for Terminal Maintenance Expenses:--This line item will be recognized
at year-end when analyzing the expenses as aligned with the Virginia Department of
Aviation’s State Entitlement Utilization Report.

Business Center/Lounge:--This line item is under budget both in revenues and
corresponding expenses due to lower traffic than expected at its inception. We will
continue to monitor the passengers that utilize the space and make adjustments to future
budgets. This is not a profit-driven activity. Rather, we strive to only recoup expenses.
State Entitlement for Debt Service Reimbursement:--This line item will be below budget
at year end by $95,000. This is due to an oversight and will be corrected with a budget
amendment. The terminal debt service was paid off in April this year and the previous
year reimbursement amount was put in the budget at $285,000. The actual
reimbursement for FY19 will be $190,000.

Expenses:

F.

Various Expense Line Items:--There are a few line items under budget. These expenses
vary and it is not unusual for the expenses to be incurred later in the year or at the end of
the budget cycle.

Various Payroll and Benefit Expense Line Items:--There were vacant positions for our
public safety department, but the positions are being filled. Since November, the
Authority has hired 5 full-time officers and 1 part-time officer. The last officer was hired
in April. The practice when calculating the budget for benefits related to open positions
is to plan for the employee to select the most expensive health care option. This is why it
appears as if we have underspent in the Health Insurance line item.




H. Airfield Grounds Maintenance: -- year-to-date expense: $36,770 Budgeted: $13,311
This account is over budget due to an unexpected fence repair project.

1. Maintenance Airfield Equipment:--year-to-date expense:$137,120.34 Budgeted: $77,328
This account is over budget due to a major repair to a dump truck ($40,640.80) done in
FY19 that was paid by insurance in FY18. GAAP required recognition of that revenue in
FY18 even though the repair didn’t get completed until FY19. This was discussed with
the auditor during the FY'18 audit.

J.  Parking Equipment Maintenance:-- year-to-date expense: $43,176  Budgeted: $18,972
This account is over budget due to the repair of parking equipment due to storm damage.

K. Terminal and Airfield OT:--
These line items are over budget due to our public safety officers having to work
overtime due to being so short staffed at the beginning of the year as well as our new
shop & fleet supervisor and new custodians working overtime to get up to speed.

L. Terminal-Util-Water:-- year-to-date expense: $40,988 Budgeted: $22,500
There was a rate increase that took effect July 1, 2018. There will be a budget
amendment made when we true up the numbers at year-end.

M. Terminal Maintenance:-- year-to-date expense: $171,325 Budgeted: $80,631
There were some terminal modifications to improve airline efficiency. Delta was moved
from gate 2 to gate 4 due to aircraft relocation. A water line had to be installed for
American and there was a structural analysis done for the chandeliers in the terminal.

N. Terminal Janitorial Supplies and Janitorial Contract: These two line items are related.
Originally, we had planned on terminating our contracted services for janitorial services,
but we did not hire our own staff until August and therefore paid a third party for the
month of July. As for the Janitorial supplies being over budget, there were some larger
pieces of equipment that needed to be purchased at the onset of having our own
employees perform some of the janitorial duties.

O. Terminal Elevator Escalator and HVAC Maintenance: These two line items account for
the maintenance that is needed for our aging systems. The expenses for these are
exceeding our budgets at this time.

Net Income

March year-to-date net income before other income = 382,310.



3JUeW.I04Iad 198png SSO7 pue Jj04d
yoday apewaq|y-ajjinsanoiey)

00'1ZZ'%2L'8 66'€6L'E7€'9 8£'907'6609 £9°'809'SeL 07 vvE'L9L 1014 s5019
001ZT'VLL'S 66°€6L€TE9 8€'902'660'9 £9'809°S2/ 0T vrE'L9L 3wodu| jejoL
_ 00'999'STL 00'755'2S8'T ¥9°E09°0VS'T 00'50Z°06T 96'S6T'€9T SINNIAIY TYNIWYIL [B10L
%0°L8- 00°€£2'S6- 00°000'9¢T 00°'£05'60T 00'0LZ'YT 00°£9T'TT 00'088'T 28un01/12)u3) ssaujsng
%00 00'0 000 000 000 00'0 000 anuaA3Y 13PIO J1OM Jure
%E"EE- 00005 100°000'58Z 00°005T4T 00'000'S6 000 000 WUBWISINGIRY 9IAISS 1G3Q JUBWBRNU3 SIEIS
%0°00T- 100°000'52Z- | | 00°000°00€ 00°000'52Z 000 00°00057 000 [euwIa]-595UadX3 dueualUIeI J0j JUT B3ers
%00 000 00'9LY'L 00°£09'S 100°209°S 00°'€29 . 00'€29 UOJSS3IU0D WLY
%I'T8- ov'Ze9'T- 00°000' 00°000° 09'2L8 000 000 |EUIWID ), SNOBUE)RISIN|
%0'€e 60°£788T 00°006'80T 00'5£9'18 160°86+°00T | 00SL0'6 | LTOTTST SUOISS3IU0) 1D /Po0
%9'Se 00'7€8'8T 00°000°0ST 00°00S°TTT (00PEETHT 100'005°2T 00°£6€°€T Suisiuanpy |
%00 000 00°£18'LS 00Z9E'EY 00°79€'sy 00'818'Y 00818y asean puey v Je) |ejusy
%00 000 00'000'7Z 00°000°8T 100°000'8T 100000 00'000' 5994 uoneyodsuel] punosg
%20 90°LTH'T 00°009°8€0'T 100'05t'999 90°£98'£99 00705072 S0°L0V'vL anuanay se) [elusy
%891 0T 'vSSY 00'S6T'9E 00vT'LE 07'869'TE 00°910°E SL'900%% WAWISINQWIPY VSL|
%S'TT 8T'T6L'E 00'72L 'Y 00" v¥EOF 8T9ET'VE 00°€6L'E T6T6L'E W2Y/334 2IAI8S Y4
%00 6S°€T- 00'956'£TS 00°L9%'88€E TESY'88E 00°€9T'EY L6'09T'EY W2y aully
. . . SINN3IAIY TYNIWYIL
(00°£89'€ES Y 00'ZEE'ETES LETTSTVE'S 00°065°0T 80°££9'6T1 SINNIAIY ONDIYY €101
%6°€9 00'SLS 00'00Z°T 00'006 00'SLY'T 00°00T 00'SLT 5934 SNOBUE|RISIN
%977 94916 00'00t'S 00050 9/'996'y 0005t 00005 Supjieq aseg mai)
%80 19°269'22 00'£80°LS"Y 00'78€'30€"€ 19'6£0'9€E'E 00'0Y0°0TY 80°796'82Y anuaAay Supped
_ _ _ SINNIAIY ONDINVd |
_ | 00'390°€S%'T 00'0TES60'T LT'69€09T'T 00°LYL'TET 91°'S86'THT SINNIAIY Q114HIV 0L
%971 00'8vt'T 00°00Z'€T 00'006'6 00°8VETT 100°00T°T 0096 "quIiY [0.3U0) $5323Y AlIndas
1%0"00T- 00°006- 100°007°T 100°006 000  |oooot 000 PISIHIY 3NUBASY SNOBUE|BISIAI|
%00 000 000 000 000 . looo 000 PlRLIY-22UBUAUIELY U3 B3e)S
%506~ Tv'LTST- 100°000°S 100°000°S 65°TLY'E 00005 000 agemols m/v.
%9'6 €6'£80°Z€ 00'Ze6'sHY 00'6VY'PEE [€6'9E5°99€ 00°T9T'LE 66'9£9°Sk anuansy 0gi
%S5'9 TE6L9' 00'9€5°06 00729122 TE'9¥8'9L 000219 YOTEL'L 5924 PlSLIV/3UsY PuUNoIo
%C v~ VL0798 0008877 00'£59°8T 19Z°9€0°0T 00'€20T | 000 siapey)
%8'S 80°768'LE 100'02£°2L8 00'£ET'7S9 80621269 0066922 €1'1£9'88 anuansy Suipue auy
| . . . SINNIATY ATANHYIV
_ 00°008'TL 6666579 0z'TILSS £9'990°E 00'975'T€ SINNIATY IALLVHLSININGY [EI0L
%9'8T-~ 000059 00°000'5€ 00°000°S€ 00°00582 000 00°005'87 we.g01d UOOWOIG '8 UOREIAY YOAA
%00 10°€ 00'002€€ 66'668'7C (00°€06%2 £9'99L° 00°29L' WaWIsINqUIBY JEIS VID
%SYT- 08'06€- 00'009° 00°00£' 0z'605° 00°00€ 00652 awoouj snosuejRosIN
. _ _ _ _ SINNIATY JALLVYISININGY |
EU0Tesll]]
asuadx3/awoou| Areuipip
%HIAAIA| | HaalA 198png enuuy 128png QLA 6T JEIN - 8T, Inf 198png 6T 18|y
6T0¢ Ydie




00'5€9722°C 00'Tv2'0/9T v8'TOV'S8T'T 00'9b2'S6T £8'679'68T sasuadx3 sApens|uIIPY |€30]
1 %0°€6- 00°0TS'E6 00°089'T4T 00'0TS'00T 00°000°L 00°068'TT 00'5.8 asuadi3 Juswadopeaaq oinIas a1y
4 %8s 000591 0000977 00°05Y'8T 00'00Z°Z 00'050'Z 000 S3UA7 [epads|
i %STH LL'S6S'09T- | 00°0SZ'S8Y 00'S09°£LE €7°600°L1T 00'S9Y'TE 95'85€'1Z asuadx3 UOROWOId g SUISIAAPY
4 %Y vE- 69'LLE G- 100°005'T6T 00'ZZ9'ET TEVYT'Y6 100°856'ST (00°00€"LE 5394 [BUOISSD)01d
%0'0 1000 00'0S2 1000 000 1000 000 ujwpy - asuadx3 1g2q peg
%0°00T 1092 000 |00°0 ¥1°092 000 000 sasuadx3 snoaue||RasI|
%LTE- 25'859'TT- 00'08Y'LY (00°ET9'SE 8Y'VS6'EC 00°£56'€ 95'881'S sasuadx3 32n0say uewny
%0001 lor'eTL 000 1000 WTTL 1000 Leen $934 90IAI3G|
%S'6TL 109'88T' 00°009 \00°00€ 09'88%'C 1000 00'ove 5994 Supjueg
%E°05- 199'595- 00'002'T 00'SZT'T YE'65S 1000 000 aersoq
%IVET 9E'ETT'E 00'00T'E 00722 9E'SEY'S 100'85T vrovr'T asuadxg Supaapy |
%T'6- T'991- 00°00%'C 100°008'T 65°€£9'T 1007002 1£9'862 Suyddiys’
%9°0- 00°€76- 000809 00°€8Y'Y 00'095°€ 00'7€8 000 Supaxien sqns 18 sang
%v'8TT 00'662'8 006198 00'79%'9 100T9LVT 00°8TL 00°SL€°T angensIuWPY ~sqns g sang
%L'89- 6E'TEL'ET- 00°000'€Z 00°000°0C 19°£92'9 00°00SC 96'ZSL'T Sunaye--paesy
%E0- LSvz- 100°000°€T 00'LtL'6 evTeL's 00'€80'T 7T TeL SAREASIUIWPY - [PARIL
%z 0T~ 99°T0p- 00'Z€T'S 0076 YETESE 00°9€Y 61846 ase97 Juawdinby
i %Sov- 66°9LESt- 00°LES'6YT 00°6YT'ZTT 10'2LL°99 00'19%'TT £0°S9T'y asuadx3 Jaindwon|
%T°SE- BV LTY'T 00°08T'6 |00°588'9 1529ty 00'59¢£ 115°€09'T uoneonp3|
%0°ST 09°88% 00°009' 00'€S6'T 09'ThY'e 00'L12 8LTSE $9a4 3uissadoud [josheq
% e 79'8801- 00'89E'ZZ 00'9££°9T 8€°/89°7T 00'798°T 19180 sasuadxg a0/
%S'ST 99'6/9'T 100'00%T 00°008°0T 99°5L1'2T 00°002'T 169957 sayddng a0
%9°0T- 62761 0000522 00'829°0¢ 1L'SE'8T 002622 61°€8°C asuadx3 adueinsu
%L'9p- 26'9826- 00'8¥8'92 00°€ET'0T 80°9¥8°0T 00'L£2°C 29'18% auoydap-mn
%59 17488 00'Ev56S 100'859% 1TSS LY 00'296'% YrOvE'S UBWaINLY
%565 9v'8LT 00'€29 00'89Y 97 9L 00'ZS 97701 qesig uuaL-3uoy /qes|q waa-Lioys|
%6°0T €8s 007688 1006999 £9°€6€°L 00 THL £€8'9€8 asuensu) a1
%9'ET or' 18’8 100'8S6'T8 00°0L'T9 0V’ 15869 100°0€8'9 orovL's ddns/'suj yyean
%L 96'991T'¢- (00'8€LLS 00'926'Ey 0'608°0v 00'6£0'9 STTIE' saxel jloshed.
%95t 00°0£9°8 |00°000°02 100°000'6T \00°029'¢T 00°00% 65°5E9'S BWIBAQ-UIWPY
%9'T- 6'£82'6- 100°'£56'952 (00°€TT6LS 190'626'695 00'668'c8 81’1718 sagem

| mvmcwnxw IAleISIulWpY

asuadxy
% H1Q 1A #1a a1a 193png |enuuy 123png a1A 6T JeN - 8T, Inf | 123png 6T JeIN .
610¢ Ydle

ddUewI0}Iad 193png ssoq pue 34044
Modiy ajiewaq|y-a)jiAsaniojey)




3duewI04i9d 198png ssoq pue 11joud
Hoduly ajewaq|y-a)|IASRI0I_YD)

| 00°TET'SOV'T 00°0T8'S90'T S0'€86°950°T 00'9%9'9€T S9'TECTET sasuadx3 pjRyIv jedo)
%0°00T- 00'760°S- 00°0089 00'760'S 000 00'995 000 asuadx3 punoidxyaeq Aunaag
%561 95'£5L'TT- 00708 00'¥S€'09 Y9658y 00'90£'9 00'€599 1013U0) 55920y Ajanaes
%E'L6- 80°06T'Z- 00°000°€ 00°052'7 76'65 00'052 76'65 s|ela1eN yewzey
%I SE- 10'062°p- 100°00€9T 00'7ZZ'TT 66'TE6L 100'85€°T 000 suueaayy|
%Z'8E- 17'566'€- 00'0S6'€T 00'85t°01 64799 007911 Lv'12ST sayddns Suiure) 13yv
%181 15°TSP'E 100°005'ST 00°STT'6T 1521522 00°STT' ZE'€T6 uBWdinb3 434y
%00 L0 00'57Z°2T 10089991 16£'899°9T 000 00'0 $9394 9IUBUUIEIN ZHIN 008
%S'61- ST799'E- 00'010'5Z 100'952°8T SL'€60'ST 100780z TT'E8EY 2dueydwo) jeuswuoauz|
%S'€6- LoZov'T- 100°00°T 100°00S°T £6'L6 000 000 sespaaxg Auagsewy
%1'8C- 6€°0L0'- 00'878'6 00'TLEL 19'00¢'s 00618 L6TTT suopun |
%LEET 000607 100's8LT 100°0SL'T 00'08'S 000 000 PRYIY "qnS g sang |
%86 67'V6T L 100°09Z°0T 100°569'2 ‘TL°007 00°S58 100z soueuR)uIeW jaAR)]
%T'b8- 82'T9'L- 100'808'TT loo1E9'8 l22°69¢'T 00656 000 uoneanpy
%T°6E 79'989 00'0vET 00'552°T 79T 00°S6T 8/'TSE 5334 SuIss3204d ||0sARd
%ETY- 0206672 00°000°0S 00°€05"L€ 08°ZIS T 00°£9T'% 000 PlayIy-2dueUUIRI S3E)S
%881 00'6689 00'vv8'sy 00°0£9°9€ 00'625'€t 100°0£0'F 07'690'7 10 pue seo asuadx3 ap|yap
%Z'08- 96'TOT'E- 00'09T'S 00°0L8°€ 0892 00'0Ew £€6'69 “yaing *dinb3 quien
%9'LL VE'T66'6S 00°00T‘€0T 00'82€'£L YE'0ZE'LET 00658 85°9££°9T wawdinb3 payny Jurew
%T'9LT 96'851'€T 00'05£'£T 00TIEST 196'69£'9€ 00'6L1'T 000 3DUBUSIUIRIA SPUNOID PIBYILY
%bET 69°LLY'E 100'08L°6T 00°Z€8'YT 169'60€8T 00'8v9°T |S€'90€'z sjueuajuien
%88 16'v¥8 00'8LL°CT 00'5856 16'62v0T 00°590°T 1000 soueuduiey Supydn|
%LTT- EV'ET9'0T- 00'018'8y 000188V £5'961°8€ 00'vb8 vL9vT |enoway mous
%00 ¥50 000090 00°L¥+0g S Lroe 00'€8E‘E 90'€8E’E asuadx3 2aueinsuj
%S'8E 9€°'TZT 00°0Z¢ 00'STE 9€°'9€ Y 00'se LOOY LEem-nn
%T'8T- 98'SYT'T- 00°001'8 100°00€9 PTYST'S 100°00L £€9'/8Y auoydaa1-nn
%b6T €2°79T'T 00'000°9 1000009 €7°79T'L 00°005'T 67°€8Y'T auedoig-mn
%E'T- 80'182- 00°008°82 10000912 T6'8TE'TT 00'00%'C Tr'6L9°T o1193[3-1N |
%8 01- 2°200°€- 00'v07'LE 00°006'£Z 9716872 00°00T'E 78076’ WwawaInay|
%S'S- £6'TE- 00°08L 00°585 LO'ESS 0059 '80°0L qesig wia1-3u01/qesiq waa)-uoys|
%01~ vr'0L9- 00'96€°9 100"26L 95'921'y 00°€€S 1Z°StS 2aueINSY| A
%9T- 09'025TT- 100'181°96 001910 0v'0v9'8S 00'5£9°8 00'565'8 “ddng/'su| yajeay
%T9- 69°CETT- 100'168'Sk 00'L2¥'vE TEvETE 00T6'S 66'8L6% saxe] |joJheq
%S°TE 08'£TT'LT 00°000°09 00°000'€S 0s'Lzz'0L 00°000'S 08'955°0T awnuIAQ |
%5'9- 6TEEL'ST 00'65L'SES 00'0£LV6E TL'966'39€ (00°06€'99 06'9€T'S sofem |

sasuadx3z ppyJIy
| % 490 QLA $1a a1A 193png [enuuy 193png QLA 6T 4B\ - 8T, Inf 193png 6T Je

6T0¢C Yaiep




00'95€'66T°C 00'TS9'899°'T TL9PT'0CCT 00°0Tt'96T TE€'8€2°00T sasuadx3 Sunjed jejo]

%8'69- '80'TE8'Z6E-  00°000°0SL 00005795 76'899'69T 00'005'29 06'886'65 £L10 uorsuedx3 Sunjsed adepng
%00 | |eo€ 00PIS'69T | 00°SZ6'9zT 70'826'92T 00VYSOT  OEPPSOT | Bupjred 32)A495 1930 00T
%00 09°€ . |00TIE'EST | 0OWBYET | 09°/8K'LET - 00'9Z'ST orolT'st | Suppied 921n195 1990 YTOZ
%0°00T- 00°€ST- 00702 | 00'gsT . 000 0oLt 000 _ Suppied-asuadx3 199 peg
%9'S6- | 0098 oozt 0006 00 0001 oot _ HoYS 3 1980
%E0  pLv0S | 00000002 100°005°8YT b p00'6YT 00°005°9T 69745L'9T wnodsiq paes 3pan
%095 v9'96S'S-  00000°0T 00°000°01 9€'E0t"Y _ EEEVBT Suppsed-swiopun
%1'L9- 0£965T-  00°09TS 00'0£8'E . 0E'ELTT  000gy 000 Supped-asuadx3 sapiysp
%0°8- ooz 00'8¥ 00°2€€ 00°0TE 00°€ . 000 "sqns 13 sang
%196~  009ZST- | 00°00SE | 00'829'T . 00'ZoT 00'26T 000 _ [onea
'%0°001- 00'¥6ET- | |00°S6TE . 006ET - |ooo 00997 000 _ uopeanpy
%Z'6T 1S5S ' 00005 000681 ISR . oootz - 9r1se _ $334 BuIs53304d [JosARd|
%T'ET £€6'9627'T 100°002'€T 100°0066 €6'96T'TT . 0000T'T 0£'959 _ 1030 iye) g 23eusis - Suppied|
%S6T-  p9TERT- | 00'0VE'S 00'0TZ9 9 LLEY . 00069 ST'6ET'T _ so|ddng
%9°LTT 9TYOZYZ | 00067'SZ 0024681 979LT'EY 00'801'Z lozr9sz'sT adueusjuiely “dinb3 Suppeq
%T'b8 £8°08T°CT 00'0TE'6T 00'T8Y'YT . €8'T99'97 . 00'609'T €L sda1s/sy300g/1uawaned Suppeg
%Y Th- 65°0L6'TE- 00'0S£°€0T 00'v18'LL TrEv8'vy 009v9'8 | ZO'EE99 @uBURUIE SpPUNoID Suppieq
%000T- | | 00°000%- 00°000°T | 000006 000 00000T | 000 Sunysi 307 Supeq
%9'SS- | T9T6E- 100°006°2 00006, 18€'805° 00SL6T | ovvoT _ |eAoway mous
%E0- TL61 100°00+°0T 00°€08'L | lezesss . loozos 18'v98 _ asuadx3 aauelnsu)
%L0 £5°T- '00°00€ 00'szz | et 00'sz 06'1Z _ LEemnn
%0°9- 60'6€5- ' 00'000°ZT 000006 16'09%'8 00'000'T €9°2€9 auoydaja1-nn
%Z'V- 07'6€T- 00°0vH'y 00°0EE’E . 08°06TE 00'0L€ | lzezss s3ySn Supped-mn
%307- | |ST'EIT'S- 00°€9v'6E 10010967 SLULEV'ET 00'682°€ | 98'E9T WBwaINeY
%LTe- | 907TLE- 00'%95°T 00pLTT w6108 \00°0ET 12'L6 _ qesia uudL-8uo/qesiq waaL-uoys
%69 19°TE- ' 00'90Z'9 00°€59'Y | 6E0EEY 00218 61'609 _ aouensuj 1
%8'8T- 0088L'4T- | 00'9S8'SCT | 00TEEV6 0009 | 00'88Y°0T 00/TT'8 | "ddns/'su| yyesH
%000L  00092T | 000 ‘000 ' 000971 000 | o000 S20IA18S pajIeIuo)-Suneg
%6 SE'ETET-  00'0SSYE . 00°€L0°LT S9'6bLST 00vYO'y | |2zTOS'E Suppied-saxey |oihed
%67T- | | TTOL6'S- 00'0000S ' 00°00Z‘9t 68'622'0F 000008 | '€z'8vS'9 Suppied-awiang
%S0 | 00's9t'T- 00VE6'96€ | 00°ZST'vOS 100°£89'70€ o0oLv'ty | 90'9sL'sy | Supjied-sadem
[ | . [ [ . | sasuadxg Supyed
% 410 A1A HaaiA | 398png enuuy 199png aLA 6T 4B - 8T, Inf 129png 6T JEW
610¢Z Ydtey

3duewJoyidd 198png ssO7 pue 30id
Modury ajewaq|y-a||IAsaniojey)




dduewIo4iad 198png ssoq pue joud
Hoduiy ajrewaq|y-a|jinsanopey)

%0°00T ot Lsg 000 000 Ov'LSE 000 60°SY $284 pae) Upasd a3unoy
%E"T8- AR 00°009'6¥T 00'Y6T'ZTT 9/'188'6T 00'99%'ZT 6198 28uno1/1e3us) ssaujsng
%6'S- 907y 00'000°0T 100'90S"L ¥6'190'L 00°'v€8 STETT SJopessequIy/ainIas JAW0Isn)
%L'S9T 0T'vE6'0T 000088 00°£65°9 OT'TES'LT 00°€€L S6'LEE'D Asjes ayqnd - swaopun
%0°00T- 00°€00'ST~ 100°000°02 00°E00'ST 000 00'£99°T 000 wa3sAs Suided feujuia)
%E 08 00 v¥8'T 100°550°€ 005622 00'6€TY 00552 00°05'T sqns g sanq
%ITT- 6EBYT'T- 100°80T'L2 00'TEE0T 19'780°8T 006522 £S'8TT'S suopedjunuIwo) Auasiaws
1%0°00T 96T 000 00'0 Y9'6TT9Y 000 000 1enuo) jeyonuef
%Z V- 00°LES' 100°000°S2 00°LbL'8T 100°01ZpT 00°€80°C 000 asueuRjule VAV
%068 00°0v0ZE- 100°000°05 00°000'9€ 100096 00°000'7 000vYy aoueusutep Sply.
%b'8E 5€'96/'ST 0070568 00'TET'£9. 'S£'/88°C6 00'65¥'L 50'829°S 3oueualUIEN IYAH
%TTS 0€'795'8T 00°562°8Y 00'572°9¢ 0E°£8L'VS 00'570'y 00°'S¥S a9uBU3IUEL J01e|EIST JOYEAI|3
%106 00°€92°ZT- 00'ZSTST 00'809°€T 100°SE'T 00°ZIS'T 00569 uoneanp3
%T°6E 29'989 00°0EC 00°9SLT 179TPr'T 00°96T 8.'ISE $924 Suissad04d |joshed
%8 ¥r'020'1Z 00°Z€0vE 00'72S'sz v rrSiop 00'9€8' 9€'559'T sanddns [elioyuer
%0 S- 0€°69S Y- 00°00S‘€T 00°SZT'01 0£'695'S l00'szTT 000 9dueuajutew wiey) adessSeg|
%S'TE- ¥8'658 Y- 0075502 100'807'ST 9T'8¥5'0T 00'TILT 000 2sueldwo) YHSO
%059~ 00'S¥'S- 100°005'6 00'817'8 00°EY6' 000 000 Suidesspue jeujuay |
%9'L6 i v09°9g- 00°000°05 |00°€05'LE 95'868 00'L9T'Y TrovT ageuss eujuna)
%I'ED- ¥8'5LL- 00'00¥'c 100'008'T 9U'vZ0'T 00002 000 uonealqed Suippm
%S5°0L- TL'96T8- 00'70S'ST 00'829'TT 67IEV'E 00'267'T 09°'6YS dwepy
%ZTT- (199 00'00Z°z 00°00t'S €5°8ELY 100°009 000 “yaund *dinb3 e
%STIT 05'€69°06 00'80520T 00'T£9°08 0S'vZETLT 00'656'8 96'786'87 soueuaruen
%0°26- 69°008- 100'096'9 0002Z's TE6TY 00085 000 [BUIWLIS L — [EAOWDY MOUS
%0°0 9701 100°0056€ 00'829'67 197'8€9°6T 00'Z6Z°E YL'E6TE asuadx3 soueinsu
%691 \€0'6LT'S 0002607 00°069°0€ |€0'698'SE 00°0TH'E 80'zze fesodsig-|an
%T'T8 96°/8¥'ST 00°000°0€ 00'005'22 196'£86°0Y 00°005' LLT6VY Jarem-nn
%8°9- PEEES- 00°Z150T 00'1788°,L '99°0s€2 l00'9.8 79'L8Y auoydajaL-inn
%TTOY $8'620°0T 00005 100°005° S8'67STT 100005 000 auedosd-ian
%S'6- 06'T08'€- 1000000 00°0000% 0T'86T'9¢ 100°000°0T veL'en lo-inn
%8'C 00°ELYE 00°000'59T 00°0S2'€TT 00°€TT LTI 00'0SL°ET vO'LTL'TT 24303310
%1'8z- ¥I'909'%T- | | 00'T/E'69 00'620'2S 98°TeY'LE 001185 oT'e8e’s WaWAIPRY
%I'IG T£'600'T- 1007TE9° 00°££6'T 69°296 00'veT 67491 qes|q wuaL-8uo1/qesiq wa L-Moys
%L'SE- BEELLT- 007901 00'9LL'L 29'200°s 00'v98 3373 souBAnNSu| 3]
%6°0%- |06°€0Z°SL- 100'799'L 1T 00'892'€8T 0T'795'80T 00'867'12 06'96E6T ddns/'su) y3jeaH
%T'6- 68'705'S- 00'St2°08 00'979'09 TTTYT'SS 100'8€5'8 £8'SS€'6 saxe] ||oshed
%6°70T (6E°£S5'PS 00°000°09 100°000€S 6€°L55°20T 100°000°S 07'LS8'3T 3WRIAAQD
%LET- '€0VT9'00T-  00'€EE‘186 00VZTVEL |L6'605°€€9 100°576'S0T 86'¥08'90T safem
sasuadxy jeunusay
% $1Q QLA $1a a1A 198png jenuuy 398png Q1A 6T JEW - 8T, Inf 198png 6T Je ]
6T0C Yoien




00'TZL'18L'8 00'€8T°£69'0 S0'9689TL’S 00°6L1'VT8 PO'ETLETS

_ 00'665°956'2 00'186'T62'C St'9EYST'T |00°2£9s8T ST LT9'T6T
\%6°EVT |0L'TEYE |oorsLT'e |00°s8¢‘c 0£'918'S 00'592 000
|%6°L9- 100'90£T- |00'0se’s 00'T1S2 100°508 00'6LT 000
\%T'LL- (00'TEY- |00°0S2 00°'8SS |oo°zeT 00'79 000
%S'L€- |¥S-98z°01- 100°009'9€ 100°0s¥'2Z |97"€9T'LT 100°050°E 09'79L°E
%8'LL- 01°90Z'¢- 00°005°s 00°ZZTy 106'ST6 |00°8SY 000TT
%6°6Y- ST'E0E'Y- 100'80S°TT 00'T€9'8 \SLLTEY 100'656 (09'6£ET
%0°0 €€e- |00°999°96€ |00"€00°£SE £9'6669SE |00°£99'6€ |£9'999'6¢
% $1a ALA Ha aix 198png |lenuuy | | 398png giA 6T JBeIAl - 8T, Inf 128png 6T Jey
_ 6T0T Ydiey

dduew.oyiad 198png sso7 pue Joid
Hoduy apewaq|y-ajjiasanopey)

asuadxg jeyo)
sesuadxg [euluIa] [e101
suogesadQ - pael) |
suopesadg - uogesnpy

asuadx3 Sumoy |
K1sges g - joAesL
soyddns swa,
Aoges|
JeUILLIB | 20IAISS 193Q POOZ




9.'829°8YL'€- |8S'SET'6LT E- 6t°b0S'99€2- 90°'TE9'001- 96°'TT0"ShE-

9/°8TT'ThL'E- |£5'978'508°Z- 8 V188, T- €£'09/'TTE- Z1'€€9°86¢-

00°000°9€6°E 100°000'2S6°C 09'£9£'856'T | 00°000°8TE |97°T08'9¢E

YT TLR'Y6T EVEST'OVT '8£756'60C | zeETior VE'BIT'GT

SL'TS8ET . 009499

000052 00'529‘s St'PTS'sT 00529 LOVET'T

_ ST'Z68'E 1000

000 000 (00'9ST'EE | [00'789°€

PTTLELST €7'82S0VT €7'82S'0VT LTYT9'ST LTHT9'ST

000052~ T0'68E'ELE- EE'0TEZSE | €c0s8'8s- v8'8LE Y-
% 310 a1A 3$1a alA 138png |enuuy 193png g1A 6T Je - T, Inf 198png 6T JeN

610¢ Y2ien

2duew.oyad 128png ssoq pue oy
Moduly apewaq|y-ajjInsanoiey)

sasuadxg \@Eou:_ 13410 BN

uonezpiowy @ uoneasdag

asuadx3 Y10
dWoaul JBYIQ [e10L |
51955y Jo [esodsig uo wey |
3wodu| 352J421u)
$P2832014 WIEP) aduesnsu|
aSesan0) - 340 |
teude) panguauo) auny|
awoou| YO
asuadx3/awadu) Joyo
awodu| Areulpio 13N




S1N0350J2 10} Suem
59|(BAIS0RI 31e3S pue Yy

1uel9 33e15 SUISO|D UBYM dAJ0SSI O
sllig 28prquay Joy de) 03 spung a9esano)

91ep }29Yd aJ042q Aep yueg wouy pa||nd [joiked

PopIau se suoneuejdxy

%000
%010~

%000

%9€E°€E

%¥59

%10

%TV'S

%8T°CL
%¥10

%SLT-
%96'0€

%6E YT

%000
KrE YT

%0T'T-
%000
%8001
%SL'69-
%E0°ST-
%L6°€E-
%6E'E

%

0
(089'v87)

0

6EE'S

0ES PS8
444
£19°8¢S

0101
SOE'T

(659°'S)
ZET'SH

¥ZT'est

0
TAR A4

(99t°g€)
0
¥60°0€
(80t'8zT)
(6v¥)
(vzg's)
T2T'0L

28uey)

08v'09 08'09
££9'08T°0L LTE'S9Y0L
065°0£7°6T 065°0€C'6T
TSEPIT €T0'6ST
68T'SZ6ET 6S9°0/0°ET
816'PST ¥69'¥ST
LI¥'942°0T ObL'ItL'6
6v6'v6 6€9'78
YEV'S06 6¢T'v06
6£€°8TE 866'€CE
9v6'06T PI8'SHT
€9T°0TZ'T 656°LS0T
$96'995 ¥96995
650°20T wL'v8
TEL9SY'E LBT'S6Y'E
88T'E16 881°c16
S7S'8tE TEV'862
£69'SS SOT‘¥8T
SPE'T v6LT
S60°6T 616'82
T88'8ET‘C 092'890°C
YaIe Ateniga4

6T0T 1e9) [edsly
UoIUSOd 13N JO JUBWleIS
Aoyiny podary spewsq)y-a)jiasaliopey)

uoneziiowe pue ug|d Ja1sep
uoneldaadsp jo 19u

uawdinba pue syuawanoidw ‘s3uipjing

pueq
sjassy jende)
sjus|eainby yse) pue ysed
Spun4 puog anuaaay
51asSYy PaYIIISOy
S195SY JUdLIND-UOYN

S19SSE PRSI [eJO)
IMOJIST YYA YyseD)
SIUIWISaAUY
iSpun4 puog snuanay
sjudjeainba yses pue ysen
Spung JuawspiIul ajels
S3|eAIRORY
pung adueualuie V1D yse)
punj jessuesn 347 yse)d
pund D43 yse)
ispund asiey) Ayjdes se) jeusy
sjua|eainba ysea pue yse)
:spung agaey) Anjoeq Ja3uassey
LEILIYEREN]
S1U|_AINDD Ysed pue ysed
ispung |eyiden
51955y pajuIsay
S}9SSY JUILIN) UON

S13SSY paldLIIsasun [B10]
Spun{ palonlsay wol4 anq
12U-3]qeAIDIBI SIUNODY
sasuadx] pledatd

Aujive4 1e3 |eIUSY - ddueansuy predald

3oueansu pieda.d

s1ua|ealnba yseo pue yse)
1S}9SSY PalaLIsaLun
$S]J9SSY UaLIn)

sjassy



papaau se suoneue|dxg

%000
%000
%00'0
%00°0
%65°'0
%010~
%010~

%0C'T

%

S OO o

850'ZTL
(200°01)
(S¥€‘60T)

SEE'SLT
28uey)

OvP'ITZ'T2T  TBE'66V'TTT SMOIINO pa.tiajaq pue s1assy [e10]
120°88¢€ 1£0°38¢€ $92IN0S34 O SMO[JINO PILIBAP |RI0].
wotee woTze SUOIINGLIUC) UOISURY
009'6 0096 SUOIINQIIIU0D §3d0 )11 WIaL dnoig
6Tv9s 6¢'9s 198p Jo SuIpunyas uo 5507

$324N0SAY JO SMOJJIND paLIajaqg
69€'€28'TTT TIETIT'TZT S13SSVY |eloL
6vv THY vOT SSP'SESPOT S3BSSY JULNJ-UON |30
L60°LLTv0T Trr'98E Ot (234dap n2de jo 30u) s1assy [ende) [e10)
06€'S08vT SS0°0€9VT ssasFoud up uonanasuo)

yasep Alenugag

6T0C 1834 |eJsiy

UOINSOd 19| 4O JUBLIIEIS
Awioyiny podury sjiewaq)y-ajasanopey)



pu-4edA Je paasnfpe 193 asay )

adeulelay Sunway)

pua-1e9A 3e pasnipe 5338 siy|

pumie| £99°s ‘aulae Jayloue pue ues|od j/Z plo
pus-1eaA 1e paisnipe 5199 siy|
pua-1eaA je pasnipe 5188 s1y).

papaau se suoneueldxy

%650

%950

%C0-

%ET'L

%110~

%000
%000

%LO'T

%000
%000
%000
%000
%000

%LY'T
%T0TE
%000
%000
%000

%0€'8
%00°0
%000
%000
%09°'ST

%

uonisod
19N pue smoju| pasajaq ‘saiHpiqer] jeioL

uonisod JaN |e1o),
‘padLIsalun
1Pa1dLIYSRY

syassy |ender) uy pajsaau)
uoiisod 19N

sasuadxy uoisuag
sasuadx3 9340 - 9y wua dnoug
$924N0SBY JO SMO|JU| pa.sajaq

S9) eyl jero]
SRU|IGENT JUND-UON |eIoL

Anjigen uoisusd 19N

Aundgen g3do ssueansu| wiay dnosg BN

sueo 23pug vOQA 01 anq

BDIAISS 1990 VYA 900Z d/N

UNodsIp puoq

paziuoweun jo 33U ‘sjqeAed spuog anuasay
SaljIger] Jua.uny-uoN

S19SSY PAILIISIY WO SIYJIGEIT JUBLIND [e30)
3|geAed s1unodoy |ende)
3|qeded a8euieloy
spuny palouisaiun o3 sng
152.49)U] pan.ooy
15)aSSY PIOMISIY W0y djqeded

$13SSY POIIUISBIUN WO SANJIG.IT JUIMNY) [RI0L
spuoq ‘pad/dep Ajunass d/y
SABY| PaNIIdY
||otAed pansdoy
3jqeAed syunoooy
151955y pAIMISAIUN wol4 3jgeled
sanjiqer Jaun)

uolisod 32N pue smojjuj pasiasaq ‘sanjiqer]

850°¢TL OVY'TIZ'ZZT  28E‘661'TTT

915'9%9 665'66L'STT €80'EST'STT

{6cT'28) 806°796'T LY0'SP0'T

000'8€8 606'765'CT 606'VSLTT

(s¥€60T) 78L'EVT'T0T LTT'ESETOT

0 S60'912 S60°912

0 000'9T 00091

Trs's9 L6419 Y0Z'vIT’9
LLZ'TOTY LLTTOT'Y

0 €€S'TL8 £€5TL8

0 000°0%1 000°0¥T

0 Z88'VEL 788'vEL

0 T9°0ST T#9'0ST

0 12E'v02'T 122'70T'C

698'1Z 658°805'T 0669871

698'T £8€'26 81504

0 LS0'T6Y LS0'16Y

0 881'€T6 88T'cT6

0 YXAAAY L27'Tn

€L9°Ey 019°695 L€6'S75

0 £99°2€ £99°C€

0 6¥Z'6TT 6VZ'6TT

0 920'%6 90'v6

€L9'Er 819'¢czE SY6'6LT

8ueyn yasew Aenugaq

6TOT e [easyy

uoIlISOd 13N JO JUAWIlelS
Awoyiny Liodury sprewsqy-afasaniopey)



5015 10U-ONUIASS BIGEUOISSAOUD],

PTTLT®Y  00T'EI9Y  T99°I8TS  LOS'BHOO  96L°610L 1 £0°088°9  L6V°88Z°L  SELIII'S P8YE8LS 3 204X LTT166% %T LBLBTV'  9ISP9S9  %g- 7909 988°509 *PNUIARY 40 JoIuY
8LE'GLE £0L°T08 F01°19¢ 977'8£9 686°0L9 698699 SLY'LOL SBLCIL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 960°080°1 P8 8LY T 66L°0VL %EL SOU'BIT'T  +LEWOTT  %LI L8€°TT1 808°TH1 DT 'spumping
Y /2300303 /po0.g
L61 %9€ 44 o€ SRS paI2oun) W0 L
SSUI0 01 ‘TeOIURYIS T “IMIRdM § =80T L89°Y %81 443 919 SHEL ory
10 T “[EOIRYOON ( 1OYIeIMGZ 6107 P83V %61 45 919 SHY317.] papnpayog
SHIDIS WS
186°908°C  TIE'6TV'T  TTHOVST  69CL69T  SOVIO8T  T6EIHET  ThSI I Is¥pee's 9s1°0sE’s 909°480°€ 200871 %ET TI0'1Z9°T  GLOSLIT'E %6l pSE0EE L6'I6E prg oy
TS6'B09T  EV8'9SHT  086°T6H°T  SLOGEO'T  00T'SHL' TICEY8T  SELT8GT T00°L01°C T60°v7TT 9€9°€6¥'T ¥Yr6°LI6T %9T 969'868°1 OLEV6ET  %S8T 80L°8ZC 68162 Uy
Trs1L PILLY 106°€L 119°¢s o1s'o 8€TL ¥80°€9 88699 T18°09 PLETS 0 %0 0 21 %0 0 0 yler Aonpy
86T°LEOT  boP'Ecs £9€'116 S91°Ch6 £TV'696 0£6°696 198°800°T 016866 TTLOTO'T LTTELOT €9TITIT %ST 9ST69  YTIb6L %I- 118°86 90¥°L6 V=12 21040440 0/7D)
681°6L 09812 8L1°69 81529 SLT09 798°sS 298°'9¢ 155°15 0£SpS vT6'SH 198°8¥ %9- 0LL'6T 0L0°8Z %b- $€8°C LTLT T7001- VD
\N&EH& .'.EQEEQ Pug Oog4
I9L°20S T TO6'8LYT  SHI'00LT  LOS'C00T  €LECHIT 8TOPET'T  LbL'PO9T 10¥°906°C L6L1'880°C 06L'SLEE LSPSEE Y %P 9EL'08L'T  68E'S68°T %0 [48 443 T10°b¥E IMuzaY Suprang
0
£PE66C 9L0°b67 9€1°98¢ 781°66C 68L01€ 9TT66T TTSLOE $65°TeE LETOPE LITTEE hsvTy %I1T 98€9LT  SHO'30€ %Ll LLETOE 8L9°5E Sag apqupvay
%95 %$9 %69 %TL %SL %9L %I8 %98 %¥8 %08 %28 %" %28 %8L %6" %I8 %L 40100,] pooy pauvidug
146891 091°LLI L98°561 69°€1Z 99%°1€7 ¥62'92Z ¥91°T€T 891°19T 81Z¥8¢ Zis'eie 065 °LYE %t SLY'9TT  SHO'LET %9 60 1€9°ST s28uassud pouvidaq
996891 659°LLT 090°961 698°S12 1L5°T€e PL8LTT 86£°8€T 1£9°192 0£0'98¢ 660°S1€ 1T6°8¥E %9 99TLTT  ILEOVT %L ¥69°vT $0¥'9T S423uassud pouvyduzg
87788 £77°¢8 1L1°€8 L9€°T8 8ELLL 90L'TL L9O'LL £66°EL [£€79 85889 08L's8 %L1 £78°CS 01919 %5~ ££5°9 L2729 suonvazdQ viof,
916C PSE'E L80°¢ 8IT°g £90°y LSY'E LYy YSLE 116%¢ [R5A 9TT9 %81~ 8YIYy [AS A %bs- 919 98¢ &py
£10°0¢ SLO8I P6TLI 98¥07 ¥ZE0T 608°81 0v0°0C STS'61 P60 p1 [x4 &4 £98°81 %0€ LYTTI LLS'PT %S 861°T 09°1 UONDIAY [D12U2D)
ooy
ELL'T 1€8°1 ¥86°1 PSLI L6T'T PEO'T 1881 £88°1 L00°T €EI°T 692°C %T 9SH°1 L8F] %6E- 8€T 24! Awnpy
988°6¢ 887°6¢ Y6ETY 3% 13 195°¢€ #T01E $8L'0E 78L°8¢ LEG'TT 8¥TST £PF0E %91 96631 1661¢C %2 PLTT 607 HOUDIAY [DA2USD)
0¥9°ET SLY0T [48 431 S19°31 £6¥°L1 T8E°LI y1T°0T 6¥0°0T 78L°61 £hI'eT SL6LT %81 910°LT £41°07 %1 L0T°T 82T 10 [ 4214407 A1)
N7 25T

suonvsadQ vsoa1y

L ¥ O d ¥ 1 Vv

6102 1edA |edsid-sonsnels bunesado



YTTLISY

BLESLE
0

186°908°Z
7$6'809°T
weIL
86T°LHO'T
681°6L
19L°L08°1
EPEG6T
%95
1L6°891
996891

87¢'88

9I6°C
£10°0T

€LLT
988°6¢
0v9°€T

00ZT'CI9Y  T99IRT'S  L98'8Y0'9  96L°610°L

€0L°T0S
0

[IE°62t'T
£78°95H°]
2092
P6r'EEs
098°IL
106'8LY'
906
%S9
091°LLE
6S9°LLL

£TT'E8

43%3
SLO'81

1€8°1
837°6¢
SL9°0T

PO1°198
0

TTH'9¥ST
086°16+1
106°€L
£9€°116
8L1°69
SPI°00LT
9E1°98T
%69
L98'S61
090°961

1L1'€8

LBO°E
Y6T'LI

86T
P6ETY
[AR 4!

97T'8€9
0

69€°L69°T
SLO6EYT
119°€S
S9I°TH6
81679
LOS€00°T
81°667
%L
6912
698°612

LIETY

30
98¥0T

¥SLl
Y6€°8€
S19°'81

686°0L9
]

80¥'198°C
00Z'sL 1
01598
£T1'696
SLZ09
ELECHIT
68L°01¢
%SL
99 1£T
1L8°EET

8ELLL

€90
YZE0T

L6T'T
19¢°€€
€6¥'LT

1E7088'9  L6V'88T°L

698699  SL8°L9L

0 0
T6EIV6'T  THSIIT'E
TOEEPR T SELTI6'T
SETTL ¥80'c9
0£6'696  198800°T
798'sS 798°9¢
STOYEL'T  LVL'P09'T
9LT'667  TTS'LOE
%9L %18
Y6797 $91°TET
VLSLTT  86€°8ET
90LTL L9OLL
LSHE [Aak4
60881 0¥0°0T
PEO'T 1881
¥TO'IE $8L°0E
78€° L1 ¥17°07

SEL'TOT'S

S8LTIL
0

IS¥veT'e
Z00°L01°C
886'99
016866
16§°1¢
10¥'906°C
$55°2TE
%98
891°19Z
1£9°192

€66°EL

bSLE
STS61

£88°1
78L°8T
640°07

¥8¥€8L'8

< <

960 080°1

981°05€°
60Y2CT
71809
TTLOI0L
0€S'¥S
L61°880°C
LETOVE
%8
81C48T
0£0°98C

1€€°79

118
$60°71

LOOT
LEG'TT
8Ll

SEY'6VS'6

Pr8'8LY'l

909°L80°¢
9E9'E6¥'T
YLE'TS
LTTELOY
Y6’y
06LSLE'S
L9T°T6E
%08

TISEIE
660°S1€

85889

3ka4
(XAN

£€1°T
8YT'ST
34054

LTT'166'6 %t SO6°TTL'L  LITPPY'L

66L°0FL T %S$1 OPT6STT  HI9SHI'T

01z
1O L TEOTUBYOIN T ISYIBIM 7T =80T HOb°S
IO T “TEOMRYIN T “ISYEIMG -610T 4L9°C

890°871v %ET SOE'9L6'T  91T'ES9E
Pr6'L96°C %9C SITLPI'T  1SOTILT
i %0 0 1
£9TITI°L %S1 CEV V6L 191°016
198°8t %8~ LSL'YE 686°'1€

0

0
LSH'SEE'Y %P 661'981°¢  TSE'pTe'E
[a 19 744 %ET 118°TIE  $96°ISE
%I8 %8 %8L
068°LbE %9 £60°9ST  S¥9'1LT
(443143 %L 08€°9ST  0LI'SLT
8L'c8 %81 96L°6S 9403
9TY %z1- 17994 000"
LOF'81 %EE 16521 LYL'91
697°T Yot LY91 SIL1
£YP0E %91 9651 o11°sz
SL6'LT %81 8861 616'TC

610C Jed/ |edsid-sonsiels Bunelsado

%1

%8¢

%8%-

%81

%81

%ET

%8¢

%0

%ET

%lt-

%9

%I1T

%l-

%81

%07

%LT

%St
%99

%It
%0T
Wil

SI1°¥6L

SLOIYI

1€
L§9

889
£67°55€
0Z1'8¥C
0
988°101
L86Y
£9t°COV
szt
%08
812'62
120814
£L6'9

0¥
$O€EL

61
009°T
v

[SL°6L8

WwZ'ist

£l
LLL

06L
L61°9EY
IPL91E
0
LESSTT
616'¢
796°8TF
0Z6'cr
%6L
009°v€
66LbE
7888

88¢
0LIT

£34
611¢
9LL'T

$5015 J0U-9NUBASI S[RUOISSIOND))
#PHUIAY 40 [y

D71 ‘spumping,
1012y /28v1200 /P00

SIS pajIouv) oo
S jonioy
SIS, panpayas
smus 1w Eyg

12nq imoy,
auy
y-sar Loy
V-9 apd0dio) o
TI001- V5

padung suopvg jang ogd
INUIAY Supyivg
Sas ajqupvay
40390, proT pauvidug
siaSuassvg pauvydag

Sa23uassvg pauvydusy

suopviadg viog

Aavrpy
uonviay \QLN_\NU
ooy
Appgy
UopmMAy DisusL)
10 pa14p)) 1Y
JJuDLUL
suonviadQ ifvso0y



TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

CHO

A I R P O R T

Members of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
May 14, 2019

Action Item #1: Approval of the FY-2020 Operating Budget and 6-
Year Airport Capital Improvement Plan

For the Board to approve the FY-2020 Operating Budget and 6-Year
Airport Capital Improvement Plan

The 6-Year Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) was presented to

the Board in March 2019 for preliminary review and to ensure that the listed projects would not pose
any issues with related governing bodies. The FY-2020 Operating Budget was then distributed on
April 29, 2019 for the Board’s preliminary review.

PRIOR ACTION:
FUNDING:
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

ATTACHMENTS:

PRESENTATION:

N/A
N/A
N/A

1) FY-20 Operating Budget and Capital Narrative
2) 6-Year Capital Plan and Organizational Chart

CHO’s Proposed FY-2020 Operating and Capital Budget



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

FY 2020 Operating Budget

SUMMARY
Proposed
Budget Budget %
2019 2020 change
Revenues:
Terminal 2,903,032 2,336,668 -19.5%
Airfield 1,453,068 1,537,272 5.8%
Parking 4,533,687 4,704,144 3.8%
Indirect 79,300 100,001 26.1%
Total Revenues 8,969,087 8,678,086 -3.2%
Expenses:
Terminal 2,956,602 2,662,623 -9.9%
Airfield 1,403,131 1,537,272 9.6%
Parking 2,199,349 2,148,915 -2.3%
Indirect 2,222,634 2,267,432 2.0%
Total Expenses 8,781,715 8,616,242 -1.9%
Net Income’ 187,371 61,844 -67.0%

'Net Income flows to Revenue Covenant Coverage Fund & appropriated:

Cov. Fund/Ent.Match

187,371

61,844



Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FY 2020 Operating Budget

NONAIRLINE REVENUES
Actual Budgeted Proposed
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
TERMINAL: .
FAA Service Rent $45,515 | $41,722 $45,504 |
TSA Lease 36,197 $36,195 $56,635
Rental Car Concessions 1,070,117 1,038,600 1,104,104
Ground Transportation Fees 24,000 24,000 24,000
Rental Car QTA Land Lease 56,136 57,817 59,552
Advertising Concession 139,263 150,000 170,000 |
Food & Gift Concession 124,235 108,900 130,000 |
Misc. Concession Rev. 280 2,000 2,000
Business Center 0 146,000 24,000
ATM Concession 7,476 | 7,476 | 7,476
Maintenance Work Order Revenue 1,204 0 0
State Maintenance Revenue 0 300,000 0
State Ent. Debt Serv Reimb 285,000 285,000 0
Terminal Revenues $1,789,423  $2,197,710  $1,623,271
Plus Calculated Aitline Terminal Rents ~ $492,186 $705,322 $713,397
Total Terminal Revenues $2,281,609 = $2,903,032 $2,336,668
AIRFIELD:
Charter Revenue $22,546  $24,880 $20,000
Ground Rent 90,992 90,536 87,210
FBO Revenue 455,932 445932 480,000
A/W Fuel Flowage 9,042 5,000 | 6,000 |
State Maintenance Revenue 0 0 0
Misc. Revenue 563 1,200 1,200
Access Control ID Fees 14,619 13,200 | 14,400 '
Airfield Revenues 593,694 580,748 608,810
Plus Airline Landing Fees 837,861 872,320 928,462
Total Airfield Revenues $1,431,555 | $1,453,068 $1,537,272
PARKING: _
Parking Revenues $4,336,505  $4,527,087  $4,696,944
Parking Permits-Tenants 5,638 5,400 6,000
Crew Parking U.S. Air 0 ' |
Misc. Fees 2,150 1,200 1,200
Total Parking Revenues $4,344,293 | $4,533,687 $4,704,144
ADMINISTRATIVE:;
Operating Interest $11,757 $7,500 $24,000
Miscellaneous Income 44,030 3,600 6,100
State Promotion Grant 0 0
State Air Service Grant 0 0 _
Aviation & Airport Promotion Grant 0 35,000 35,000
QTA Staff Reimbursement 30,660 33,200 34,901
Administrative Revenues $86,447 $79,300 $100,001
Total Revenues $8,143,904  $8,969,087  $8,678,086 |

% Diff.




Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FY 2020 Operaqfn‘_g Budget

OPERATING EXPENSES
Actual ' Budget Proposed
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
TERMINAL: I |
Wages | $533,209 | $981,333 $1,077,948
Terminal Contracted Service . 0 0] 0
Overtime | 58,049 60,000 | 71,525 |
FICA/Benefits | 43,892 80,247 | 89,180
Health Insurance Expense . 99,676 247,664 | 252,413 |
Life Insurance Expense | 4,063 10,364 11,655
STD/LTD Insurance Expense _ 761 | 2,631 2,908
Retirement Expense 32,054 69,371 | 77,508 |
Util-Electric 162,409 165,000 180,000
Util-Propane 1,060 | 2,500 2,500 |
Util-Oil 46,318 40,000 | 40,000 |
Util-Telephone | 11,651 | 10,512 12,000
Util-Water | 26,356 | 30,000 | 45,000
Util-Disposal | 40,975 40,920 | 69,720 |
Insurance | 33,991 | 39,500 41,500
Snow Removal i 25 | 6,960 | 5,810 |
Building Maintenance | 134.664 107,508 87,500
Maintenance Equip Purchase | 11,200 | 7,200 | 10,900
Relamp 11,981 15,504 | 18,504 |
Welding/Fabrication _ 255 2,400 2,400 |
Terminal Signage & Compliance 3,010 | 50,000 | 25,000 |
Terminal Interior Landscape _' 4,326 9,500 | 7,940 |
OSHA Compliance _ 9,941 | 20,552 23,602
Bag Claim Maintenance 11,980 13,500 11,750
State Maintenance _ 0 0 0
Janitorial Supplies & Uniforms _ 25,717 | 34,032 43,817
Payroll Processing Fees 2,769 | 2,340 | 3,000
Education-Public Safety | 22,127 18,152 28,895
Elevator/Escalator Maintenance | 54,843 48,295 59,190
HVAC Maintenance _ 89,423 | 89,504 | 94,500 |
FIDS Maintenance | 4,840 50,000 50,000
KABA Maintcnance 0 25,000 | 30,000
Janitorial Contract ' 268,487 | 0 0
Emergency Communications | 22,123 27,108 33,158
Dues/Subscriptions _ 8,785 3,055 6,175
Terminal Paging 0 20,000 | 0|
Public Safety Uniforms | 13,500 8,800 10,400
Customer Service/Ambassador | 6,895 10,000 4,000
Business Center Expenses 149,600 29,200
Safety _ 3,717 11,508 16,700
First Aid Supplies | 659 | 5,500 | 6,500
Public Safety Technology 0 0| 41,200 |
Travel - Public Safety | 207 36,600 31,350
Towing Expense _ 0 750 | 750
Education-Operations 475 3,350 | 3,350
Travel - Operations _ 3,280 3,175 3,175
Terminal Direct Expenses | 81,809,693 $2,559,936  $2,662,623
Debt Service $476,000 $396,666 30

Total Terminal Expenses . $2,285,693 . $2,956,602 | $2,662,623 _




FY 2020 Operattl'ng Budget

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

OPERATING EXPENSES
o Actual . Budget _Proposed
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020

AIRFIELD: . | ]
Wages $465,926 $§ 535,759 $605,206 |
Airfield Contracted Services _ 0 0 0
Overtime _ 56,171 60,000 | 83,879
FICA/Benefits _ 38,850 | 45,891 53,112

Health Insurance Expense | 77,289 96,181 125,058 |
Life Insurance Expense | 3,816 6,396 | 7,832 |
STD/LTD Insurance Expense | 551 | 780 622
Retirement Expense | 28,589 37,204 | 46,409
Util-Electric | 28,560 | 28,800 28,800 |
Util-Propane B | 6,786 | 6,000 6,000
Util-Telephone 7,147 8,400 | 8,400 |
Util-Water | 405 420 | 420 |
Insurance 35,404 | 40,600 37,800
Snow Removal 25,230 48,810 | 50,000
Airfield Lighting | 21,958 | 12,778 12,778

Airfield Maintenance | 22,334 19,780 70,180

Airfield Grounds Maintenance 13,256 17,750 17,750

Airfield Equipment Mtnc _ 94,060 | 103,100 116,100

Maintenance Equip Purchase | 5,500 5,160 | 15,700 |
Vehicle Expense 30932 48,844 | 51,044
State Maintenance | 0| 50,000 0

Payroll Processing Fees | 2,769 2,340 | 3,000
Education 8,335 11,508 | 14,608 |
Travel _ 0 10,260 14,260

Dues & Subscriptions | 7.840 1,785 2,035
Uniforms 5,128 | 9,828 | 9.828 |
Emergency Exercises | 3,724 | 1,500 1,500

Environmental 9,173 25,010 | 28,304
800 mhz Infrast. Mtnc Exp | 22,870 22,225 21,227 |
ARFF Equipment | 20,771 | 25,500 30,000
ARFF Training Supplies 14,791 13,950 | 14,900 |
Firearms | 5,517 16,300 8,550
Hazmat Supplies | 1,516 3,000 3,000
Access Control Mtnc & Supply 14,342 80,472 42,170
Security Background Expense _ 6,000 6,800 6,800

Airfield Direct Expenses | $1 ,085,540  $1,403,131 | $1,537,272
Debt Service 0 0 0
Total Airfield Expenses $1,085,540  $1,403,131 $1,537,272




Charilottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FY 2020 Operating Budget
|

i
OPERATING EXPENSES

Actual Budget Proposed
FY2018 | FY 2019 FY 2020

PARKING: I | ]
Wages $344,873 | $396,934 | $394,815
Overtime 42,963 50,000 79,836
FICA/Taxes 28,554 34,550 | 35,893
Health Insurance Expense 86,030 | 125,856 | 119,448
Life Insurance Expense 2,927 6,206 6,380 |
STD/LTD Insurance Expense 871 | 1,564 | 1,654 |
Retirement Expense 23,483 39,463 40,570 |
Util-Electric 4,386 4,440 4,440
Util-Telephone 11,693 12,000 | 12,000 |
Util-Water 266 300 300 |
Insurance 8,506 | 10,400 | 10,686

Snow Removal 2,619 7,900 8,000 |
Parking Lot Lighting 10,370 12,000 12,000

Grounds Maintenance 69,843 | 103,750 | 108,800
Pavement/Step/Booth Mtnc 5,854 19,310 20,200 |
Parking Equip. Mtnc 12,740 | 25,290 | 30,300

Supplies 5,758 8,240 9,540
Signage & Traffic Control 6,339 | 13,200 | 13,300
Payroll processing fees 2,769 2,500 3,000

Education 3,582 3,195 | 3,195 |
Travel 1,440 | 3,500 | 3,500
Dues & Subscriptions 310 448 448
Parking Vehicles 0 5,160 5,910 |
Uniforms 545 10,000 | 7,000 |
Credit Card Discount 193,109 | 200,000 220,000
Cash Over/Short (168) 120 120

Bad Debt Expense 0 204 204
Parking Expansion 0 750,000 750,000

Parking Direct Expenses $869,662 | $1,846,531 $1,901,539

Debt Service $373,907 $352,818 $247,376

Total Parking Expenses $1,243,569  $2,199,349 $2,148,915




Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FY 2020 Operating Budget

_ OPERATING EXPENSES
~Actual ‘Budget Proposed
FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020

ADMINISTRATIVE: [ | . _
Wages $681,959  $756,957 8752413
Overtime 18,852 | 20,000 | 44,759 |
FICA 50,122 57,738 61,559

Health Insurance Expense 58,313 81,958 81,958
Life Insurance Expense | 5,779 | 8,892 | 9,204 |
STD/LTD Insurance Expense 748 | 623 632

Retirement Expense 30,699 | 59,543 | 58,529 |
Util-Telephone 19,243 26,848 26,848
Insurance 23,175 27,500 | 28,925
Office Supplies 16,524 | 14,400 | 20,400 |
Office Expense 17,032 | 22,368 23,844
Payroll Processing Fees 2,769 2,600 3,000 |
Education 9,187 9,180 | 8,480
IT Expense 46,169 149,537 106,559
Equipment Lease 5,835 5,232 5,850 |
Admin Travel Expense 8,328 13,000 | 12,300 |
Marketing Travel Expense 4,406 | 23,000 | 23,000 |
Dues & Subscriptions-admin 10,280 8,619 10,802 |
Dues & Subscriptions-mktng $3,985 | 6,080 7,330
Shipping 1,892 | 2,400 2,400

Meeting Expenses 4,871 3,100 | 3,100

Postage 800 | 1,700 1,700
Banking Fees 2,651 600 3,480

Service Fees 523 0 0
Human Resource Expenses 29,947 47.480 | 26,080
Miscellaneous Expense (15,255) 0 0

Bad Debt Expense 0 250 250
Professional Fees 121,858 | 191,500 | 244,000 |
Advertising & Promotion 297,562 485,250 485,250

Special Events 9,407 24,600 36,600
Air Service Development 43,885 171,680 178,180 |
Administrative Direct Expenses $1,511,546 | $2,222,634 $2,267,432 |
Total O&M Expenses w/o Debt $6,126,348  $8,781,715 $8,616,242




[ !

Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FY 2020 Operating Budget .

B B - B " Debt Service - B -
Required Date Debt
2020 Debt Service Coverage Matures

Series 1998 Bonds - Parking $0

Series 1995 Bonds - Terminal $0

State Entitlement Debt Service Reimb $0

State Entitlement Coverage $0

800 mhz Radio Debt Service (final ye; 50

Series 2006 Pking Lot rolled into $64,059 7/1/2020
Series 2004 Refunding Parking $0 4/1/2019
Series 2004 Refunding Terminal 0 4/1/2019
Series 2014 Parking 183,317 7/1/2025
GARB Debt Service $247,376

Coveraged required for GARB debt $61,844

VRA Loan Debt Service:

Rental Car Structure (CFC Backed) 176,811 11/1/2020

(Series 2002)
Total Debt Service $486,031




Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

FY 2020 Operating Budget

LANDING FEE
2020
Airfield O&M Expenses 1,537,272
Debt Service -
Debt Service Coverage -
Reallocation of Expenses -
Total Airfield Expenses $1,537,272
Less Airfield Nonairline Revenues $608,810
Airfield Revenue Requirement $928,462
Landed Weight 447935
Landing Fee per 1000 pounds $2.07
Total Landed Weight 447,935
Total Landing Fees $928,462




Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority
FY 2020 Operating Budget

TERMINAL RENTAL RATES
2020

Total Terminal O&M (direct and indirect)+ a/f subsi $4,504,939
Total Parking O&M (direct and indirect) 2,226,654
Terminal GARB Debt Service 0
Parking GARB Debt Service 247,376
GARB Coverage/Entitlement Match 61,844
Total Expenses $7,040,813
Less:

Terminal Nonairline Revenues $1,623,271

Parking Revenues (excluding CFC) $4,704,144
Total Nonairline Revenues $6,327,415
Total Terminal Requirement $713,397
Leased Airline Square Feet 18,426
Average Terminal Rental Rate $38.72
Airline Leased Space (square feet):
Type1' 4,115
Type 22 14,311
Total Leased Square Feet 18,426
Weight:
Type 1 100%
Type 2 80%
Weighted Airline Leased Space (square feet):
Type 1 4,115
Type 2 11,449
Total Weighted Leased Square Feet 15,564
Weighted Terminal Rental Rate:
Type 1 $45.84
Type 2 $36.67
Revenue by Type of Space:
Type 1 $188,619
Type 2 524,778
Total Terminal Rental Revenues $713,397

1) Type 1 (includes Ticket Counter, Outbound Bag, Airline Offices)
2) Type 2 (includes Holdroom, Baggage Claim, Baggage Office)




Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority

FY 2020 Operating Budget

COST PER ENPLANEMENT
Proposed
2020
Landing Fees $928,462
Terminal Rental Revenues 713,397
Total Airlines Revenues $1,641,859
Enplanements 372,000
Cost Per Enplanement $4.41




SqIuour ¢ 3s8] 000°000°9¢ Suiwnsse
00SEPy sBiop popuer]

syluow ¢ 1se| ‘[ £ Sumunsse
00089¢ a1 Sunjooy [duo

61Ad
STIPS 6L°0v$ 6L0v$ 9L 0v$ 16'6€$ 60°€T$ 60°¢TS 60°¢T$  8SITS  L8'TTS 8L'TTS 9°¢TS 89°¢TS S9jel [BJUSI WIS} IAY
8744 Sr'v$ Yo'v$ Vv SS¥S 85°¢cs TS 66'¢$ IT'v$ 9'es 8eFS £9'7$ Er'ss Juswaue]duy 184 1500 SUILTY
000°TLE  000°89E  000°0YE  TT6SYE  660°S I€  0£0°98T  1€1°19T 86€'8ET  VLS'LTT LOGIET  VOV'EOT  £bSESI €TY'ELI sjuowouejdug
SE6'LYY  00S'EPY  000S1y  +L9°86€ 99V Y€  vPI‘86T  000°TLT €89°TLT  660°S9T  ¥SLOST  €6¥°LST  000°SLT 109°9ST (591 000) 14S1oM popue]
L99¢$ ST9ES ST9e$ €C9es LY'SES (414 (4174 50T§ 81618 €E0Ts §T0T$ 10°12$ S0'1Z$ W%®0
¥8°S¥$ e'shs cE'Shs 8TSHE PETPE §9°5T$ $9°6T$ §9°6Z¢  L6'€TS  1¥'STS 1€°6Z% 92'9Z% 1€°92$ JUSY SAISTOXH
LOT$ 01°cs 01°cs$ 80°C$ 0°C$ S6'1$ S6'LS 98°'1% 81§ 8L'1$ LL'TS 8S°1$ 6S°'1$ a4 Sutpue]
020T 610C 6102 810T L10T 9102 §10¢ ¥102 €10T <10z 110t 0102 600T
Adpng AJumsgy AJPng APV AIPY AIPY AdPY  AARY  AAPV  AdPY  AdPY AIPV  Ad PV

ALINIIDV

1w3png Jupviadp 0707 14
Apeoyny soduy VUG -2]145211014Y )



FY 2020 — Capital Improvement Program Narrative

The Airport Authority’s FY 2020 Capital Plan is designed to provide modern, safe, and
efficient amenities for the benefit of users and guests of the Charlottesville-Albemarle
Airport (CHO). An investment of $34 million in federal, state and Airport Authority
resources is being programmed during this fiscal year period to accomplish these needed
projects with approximately twenty-two percent (22%) of this amount being derived from
non-Airport Authority sources as follows:

Federal Aviation Administration: $ 2.3 million 6.7 %
Virginia Department of Aviation: 5.3 million 15.3 %
Passenger Facility Charge Program: B million 22%
Rental Car Customer Facility Charge Program 7.0 million  20.1 %
Debt Service 18.7 million 54.3 %
Airline Discretionary Fund: .5 million 1.5%
Total $34.5 million 100.0 %

Resources from the Airport Authority’s Discretionary Fund Account will be directed
toward accomplishing projects that do not qualify for federal or state assistance or
projects which require matching funds.

The following is a brief overview of the planned projects:

A. Rental Counter Rehab — This project will allow for the rehabilitation of the
existing rental car counters which were install in the early 1990°s when the
terminal building was constructed, and the project will be funded 100% from
the Rental Car Customer Facility Charges collected at CHO.

B. Jet Bridge Replacement — This project will allow for the replacement of the
existing jet bridge which is located at Delta Air Lines’ Gate 3 area. This jet
bridge was installed when the terminal building was constructed in the early
1990’s.

C. Relocate Taxiway E — The planned air carrier ramp project will impact the
operational efficiency of Taxiway E. This project will correct this issue by
relocating the Taxiway E to the north of the planned air carrier ramp
expansion.

D. Replace Baggage Claim Device (Inbound) — This project will allow for the
replacement and possible reconfiguration of the existing baggage claim device
which is located inside the “Baggage Claim Area” and a portion of the device
is located adjacent to the exterior of the south side of the terminal building,
This system was installed in the early 1990°s when the terminal building was
constructed, and it allows for the airlines to place all passenger-checked bags
on the belt for transport into the “Baggage Claim Area” where passengers are
able to retrieve their items.




Replace Out-Bound Baggage Belts — This project will allow for the
replacement and improvement of the existing out-bound baggage belt system.
The Authority’s outbound baggage belt system moves luggage from the
“Airline Ticket Counters” through the “TSA Luggage Screening Area” to the
“Baggage Makeup Area” where the airlines retrieve the luggage for transport
to the aircraft. This system is not located within any tenant rental spaces, and it
is 100% owned and maintained by the Airport.

Escalators Replacement — This project will allow for the replacement of
existing escalators which were installed when the terminal was constructed in
the early 1990’s. The age and condition of the existing system requires
significant repair costs, and the new system will also be improved to
incorporate new cost-saving technology.

Repayment of 3 Virginia Department of Aviation (VDOA) Bridge Loans - In
order to complete the 2012 Runway 21 Extension Project, the Authority was
required to purchase adjacent land and avigation easements along with
removing identified obstructions. The Authority secured the funding of these
projects by borrowing funds from VDOA. This project will allow FAA funds
to be used to reimburse the VDOA for three bridge loans.

Friction Tester for Airfield — This project will allow for the purchase of an
additional “Friction Tester” which is needed during adverse weather
conditions.  Staff uses this equipment to test the friction of the airfield
pavement to ensure that safe operational conditions are present for the landing
of aircraft.

Snow Removal Equipment Storage Shop Improvements - This project will
allow for upgrades and improvements to the existing shop facility where the
Authority’s snow removal equipment is repaired and stored.

Vehicle Gate Installation at Signature Flight Service — This project allows for a
new vehicle gate to be installed near the general aviation t-hangars. The
existing gate is located adjacent to a steep decline which becomes difficult to
transit during inclement weather.

Terminal Fire Suppression Upgrade —This project will upgrade the terminal
building’s fire suppression system which was installed in the early 1990’s
when the terminal building was constructed,

Pickup Truck with Snow Blade — This project allows for the purchase of a
pickup truck that will be used for maintenance. It will be equipped with a
snow blade which will allow for it to be used in the Authority’s snow removal
equipment fleet.




M. Terminal Technology to include IT Room Modifications— This project will
allow for upgrades to the terminal technology system and will include
modifications and improvement to the terminal’s IT room.

N. Remote Control Steep Slope Mower— There are several locations on the
airfield and within the terminal area that have extremely steep slopes due to the
terrain of this region. This purchase will allow for those areas to be maintained

in a safe and efficient manner.

O. Unanticipated Eligible Repair & Maintenance — This project will fund a
portion of eligible expenses associated with unanticipated maintenance and

repair activities on the airfield and within the terminal area.

P. FY20 Escalator Maintenance — This project will fund a portion of repairs and
the annual costs for the Escalator Maintenance Service Contract with Shindler

Escalator Services.

Q. FY20 HVAC Maintenance — This project will fund a portion of repairs and the
annual costs for the HVAC Maintenance Service Contract with Johnson

Controls.

R.  FY20 Elevator Maintenance — This project will fund a portion of repairs and
the annual costs for the Elevator Maintenance Service Contract with Southern

Elevator.

S.  FY20 Access Control Maintenance - This project will fund a portion of repairs
and the annual costs for the service contract with A-Tech for maintenance

work related to the repair and maintenance of the access control system.

T. FY20 Rubber Removal / Ramp & Taxiway Repair/ Joint Seal and Airfield

Pavement Maintenance — This project will fund a portion of contracts for
rubber removal from the airfield pavement. Repairs to the general aviation
taxiways/taxilanes and commercial air carrier ramp will be funded in this
project along with joint sealing of the ramp and other required airfield

pavement maintenance.

U. FY20 KABA (Unmanned Exit Lane) Maintenance — This project will fund a
portion of the annual cost for the maintenance and repairs of the KABA Exit
Door System which serves as the unmanned security lane system for
passengers exiting from the secure post screening area to the “Baggage Claim

Area”.

V. FY20 ARFF/Tractor/Snow Removal & FOD Equipment - This project will
fund expenses associated with the repair and maintenance of the Authority’s
ARFF/Tractors/Snow Removal and FOD equipment. The purchase of tires,
blades, wafers and other parts will be included in this project along with

required maintenance of the equipment.



Ww.

FY20 Paint Interior of Terminal Phase I Prescreening — This project will fund a
portion of the expenses associated with a contract to paint the prescreening
portion of the terminal interior. This project will be the first phase of a two-
phase project.

FY20 Clean and Recaulk Exterior of Terminal — The existing terminal was
constructed in the early 1990°s and the exterior of the building is a combination
of brick and aluminum composite material (ACM) panels which are secured in
place with Dowel 795 structural silicone caulking. Due to the age of the ACM
panels and associated caulking, the detailed cleaning and re-caulking of the
existing ACM panel system is required to safeguard the structural integrity of
the building and ensure that moisture does not penetrate the system.

FY20 Airfield Pre/Post Emergent Application — This project will fund a
portion of a project that will consist of a contract with a vendor to apply
pre&post emergent chemicals to the airfield grass and the security fence line.

FY20 Exterior Painting of ARFF Building — This project will fund a portion of
the expenses associated with a contract to paint the Authority’s ARFF

Building.

AA. Terminal Gutter Installation — Portions of the terminal have failing gutter

AB.

AC.

AE.

systems or they lack any type of gutter system. This project will allow for the
installation and improvement of the entire terminal building’s gutter system.

800 MHz Radio Emergency Communication System / Equipment Uperade —
This project will fund a portion of the expenses required to replace some of the
older radios needed for the Authority’s 800 MHz Radio Emergency
Communication System.

Airport-Wide Security Upgrade Phasel — This project will provide for the
first phase of an airport-wide project to upgrade the Authority’s existing
security system as required by

.800 MHz Radio System Emergency Communication System Upgrade

(Payment 3 of 3) — The airport is part of a regional 800MHz radio system.
This system is being upgraded, and all participants are responsible
proportionately for the cost of this upgrade.

Parking Deck — This project will allow for the construction of a multi-level
parking structure. It is anticipated that the structure will be four levels with
approximately 200 — 250 parking spaces on each level. The rental car ready-
return parking lot will be relocated to a level of this structure resulting in one-
fourth of the cost of this project being funded by Rental Car Customer F acility
Charges collected at CHO. It is anticipated that the parking deck project will
be funded by the issuance of bonds.



AF. Snow Removal Equipment (SRE) Storage Structure — The existing SRE
building does not have the capacity to house all of the Authority’s snow
removal equipment. This is project will allow for the construction of a storage
structure near the existing SRE building which will accommodate any
equipment that is not able to be stored in the existing SRE building.

AG. Bucket Truck — This project will allow for the purchase of a bucket truck that
will be used primarily for the maintenance and repair of the airfield ramp and
roadway lighting.

AH. Roof Replacement of Rental Car Quick-Turn-Around-Area (QTA) — This
project will be funded by rental car customer facility charges and will allow for
the replacement/repair of roof of the rental car QTA building.

Al De-Icer Attachments for Snow Removal Equipment Fleet — This project will
allow for the purchase/fabrication of attachments that will dispense de-icing
chemicals. These attachments will be used on the plows and other snow
removal equipment identified within the Airport’s approved Part 139 required
“Snow Plan”.




CHO

A1 RPoORT
TO: Members of the Charlottesville Albemarle Airport Authority
FROM: Melinda C. Crawford, Executive Director
DATE: May 14, 2019
SUBJECT: Action Item #2 — Resolution No. 2019-4 “Executive Director

Authorization to Accept a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Grant
for the Construction of the Air Carrier Ramp Expansion and the
Construction of the Entry Pavilion Projects.”

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board adopt Resolution No. 2019-4 “Executive Director
Authorization to Accept FAA Grant for the Construction of the Air Carrier Ramp Expansion
and the Construction of the Entry Pavilion Projects.”

BACKGROUND:  In accordance with the Board approved Airport Capital Improvement
Plan, an application will be submitted to the FAA in the near future requesting funding for
the “the Construction of the Air Carrier Ramp Expansion and Construction of the Entry
Pavilion Projects.” Once the FAA processes the grant application and offers the funding for
these projects, there will be a very short time period in which the Authority can execute and
accept the offer. The attached Resolution 2019-4 will authorize the Executive Director to
accept the FAA grant when offered.

PRIOR ACTION:  September 2018: Board approved the 6-Year Airport Capital
Improvement Plan which included the above referenced projects.

January 2019: Board approved Amendment #1 to the 6-Year Airport
Capital Improvement Plan which included the above referenced

projects.

FUNDING: Air Carrier Ramp Expansion - Const. Entry Pavilion — Const.
Federal: $2,000,000 Federal: $3,429,042
State: $1,644,444 State: $ 0
Local *: $ 355.556 Local *: $ 570.958
Total: $4.000.000 Total: $4.000.000

* This is an estimate of the project and the amount may be increased to include additional planning
requirements.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  * The local match will be funded from the Airport’s VDOA
entitlements and Passenger Facilities Charges.

ATTACHMENTS: 1§ Resolution No. 2019-4 “Executive Director Authorization to

Accept FAA Grant for the Construction of the Air Carrier Ramp
Expansion and the Construction of the Entry Pavilion Projects.”

PRESENTATION: None



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-4

Authorization of the Executive Director to Accept a Federal Aviation Administration Grant for
the Construction Phase of the Air Carrier Ramp Expansion and Entry Pavilion Projects.

WHEREAS, the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority Board is the governing body of
the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority (“Authority”), a political subdivision of the
Commonwealth of Virginia as established by the Act of the Virginia General Assembly, 2003,
Chapter 864, as amended; and,

WHEREAS, airline operations have increased at the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
(“Airport”) and the air carrier ramp is reaching capacity at peak travel times. This capacity issue will
restrict the acceptance of additional flights during those travel times and place the airport at a
competitive disadvantage if the ramp is not expanded to accommodate the parking of additional
commercial air craft; and,

WHEREAS, the primary route of ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) compliant access
from the Airport’s long-term parking lot to the terminal curb-side area is a stand-alone elevator
structure centered between two sets of brick stairs; the elevator also is heavily used during periods of
inclement weather. The elevator system is older and operational malfunctions are becoming more
frequent. When this happens, accessibility is impacted and the movement of all passengers is
hindered. The Authority’s board has determined to proceed with the construction of a two-story Entry
Pavilion building which will house two elevators, a set of escalators and set of stairs which will allow
for the movement of passengers and luggage from the terminal area to the long-term lot. This
building will also house up to two restrooms and the required building mechanical systems. The
construction of a covered walk-way from the terminal building to the entry pavilions will also be
included in this project. When completed, this structure will be ADA compliant and will facilitate the
safe and convenient movement of passengers from the terminal curb-side area to the long term public
parking lot; and,

WHEREAS, the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport Authority approved Amendment #1 to
the FY2018 6-Year Capital Budget on January 17, 2018, which included the Construction Phase — Air
Carrier Ramp Expansion Project and Construction Phase — Entry Pavilion Project (“Proj ects”); and,

WHEREAS, it has been determined that proceeding with the Projects is in the best interest of
the operational efficiency of the airport, and the design work for both projects has been completed
and procurement transactions will soon be initiated for the Projects; and,

WHEREAS, the Authority’s Executive Director will be submitting a grant application to the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for the Projects, and it is anticipated that the requested grant
will be offered to the Authority for the Projects in the near future; and,

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing Board of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport
Authority that the Executive Director is authorized to act on behalf of the Authority to accept and
execute any FAA grant when offered. All decisions and contractual obligations made by the
Executive Director on behalf of the Authority shall be conditioned upon the availability and
appropriation of funds by the Authority to support the Projects.



ADOPTED this 14™ day of May, 2019.

Vote:

Aye:

Certified:

By:

Melinda Crawford, Secretary

No:




May 2019

——v’

CHO

A I R P O R T

1. Executive Director’s Update for the following items will be provided:

a. Personnel Update

b. CHO Open House Update

c. PFC Application Update

d. Construction Update

1.
ii.
ii.
iv.
V.
Vi.
Vii.
viii.

Parking Improvements Design
Runway/Taxiway Rehab Construction
Air Carrier Ramp Expansion Design
Entry Pavilion Design

Terminal Energy Modification
MALSR Update

Terminal Pre-screening work

Request for Proposals (RFP)

e. Marketing & Air Service Update

f. Joint Board/Commission Fall Retreat



